Responses to Questions
RFP # 9035: Services Related to Strengthening Employee Engagement
Questions Received 9/17/2018
1. Within the document it appears that there is only a project plan through 2019. Our experience has taught us
that creating a “Workplace of Choice” generally is a multi-year effort, are you open to a multi-year relationship
or looking for just a single year contract?
Task 3 indicates that recommendations for creating an implementation plan with recommended activities that
support the attainment of the Workplace of Choice strategic objectives and Task 5 indicates that assistance may
be needed in implementing activities to improve employee engagement. Both of these indicate that we are
open to a working partnership beyond a single year. The determination of creating a longer-term partnership
will be made at a future date.
2. Can you share the timing associated with training given to employees, for example, training for new employees,
refresher training, etc?
a. When training does occur is it typically computer based training, on the job (OTJ) training, or a combo of
the two?
Training is provided regularly throughout our employees’ careers. The training that is required by regulatory
requirement for the jobs related to sewer system maintenance, wastewater treatment operations, and safety is
scheduled for employees on a regular basis throughout a typical year. This training is mostly internally created
and provided. The delivery methods include computer-based, instructor-led, and on-the-job. Training for jobs
that do not have regulatory requirements is typically scheduled on an as-needed basis requested by the
employee or supervisor. This training is typically provided by external providers. We also provide instructor-led
leadership training to interested employees. Employees also have the opportunity to request training through
the County of Sacramento. This training occurs as requested and is typically instructor-led.
3. What current system(s) does Regional SAN and SASD use to communicate with employees today (ie. Email,
intranet, newsletters)?
A number of communication methodologies are used:
 The Pipeline newsletter published each month highlighting projects, special projects, awards, and events
 Supervisors conduct team meetings where news and updates are verbally communicated
 Quarterly Briefing meetings where news, information, and updates are provided to the supervisors and
managers
 Our general manager meets with individuals and teams on an informal basis for general communication
and soliciting employee perspectives
 Executive management conducts an annual information sharing meeting that is open to all staff
 Intranet sites are used by Regional San and SASD to provide general announcements and updates to
employees
4. Does Regional SAN and/or SASD have individual performance indicators for each employee or any mechanism
for rating performance, please explain.
Performance is rated through an annual performance evaluation process. The evaluation form includes various
performance factors (indicators) that are rated individually and an overall performance level indicated. Certain
jobs have specific performance indicators establishing expected production goals.
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5. Knowing that improving project efficiency is an objective to be accomplished through higher engagement what
are the metrics used today to determine project efficiency?

Regional San and SASD have numerous metrics to assess their effectiveness and efficiency from the
organizational level, day-to-day operational level and project level. Majority of these metrics assess the
financial, collection, conveyance and treatment aspects of the business.
At the highest level, the metrics that Regional San and SASD have are service levels, which can be found at
www.regionalsan.com (click the Customer & Financial Accountability tab) and www.sacsewer.com (click the
Serving Our Customers tab). Both districts also have numerous performance indicators that are similar to
American Water Works Association Utility Benchmarking Performance Indicators. Other metrics were developed
based on concepts from Effective Utility Management. At the project level, status of budget and schedule are
tracked. The current metrics are more oriented toward the two Operations departments than the other
departments and offices.
6. In addition to your mission and vision, does your organization have core values?
a. If so, what are they?
b. Are there established behaviors associated with your values? If so, what are those behaviors?
c. What does the organization do to promote your values?
Yes, we have organizational core values. A description of those values is included at the end of this document.
Our values are promoted in various ways:
 When values were initially introduced to staff, each received an introduction letter from our general
manager, hard-copy descriptions of the values, and a small desk-top card with a summary of each value.
 As part the initial roll-out of the values, small group sessions were conducted that allow our staff to
learn about the values and to think through how they, in their jobs, connected to them
 The management team is encouraged to discuss values in team meetings
 Values are used as themes for articles in our monthly newsletter
7. Can you please provide additional information regarding your demographics:
a. Number of locations
b. Number of employees by location
c. Average age
d. Gender percentages
e. Ethnicity percentages
f. Educational level breakdown
g. Exempt vs. non-exempt percentages
h. Average tenure
i. Average turnover rate
a & b: Number of locations and number of employees by location
We are located at four locations, all within the boundaries of Sacramento County. Those locations, along
with the percentage of staff located there, are:
Sacramento Regional Wastewater Treatment Plant (Elk Grove): 48%
Goethe Road (Sacramento): 42%
North Area Corporation Yard (Antelope): 7%
Interceptor Operations and Maintenance (Natomas): 3%
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c through i: We are choosing not to release this information at the present time. If success of the project
necessitates this information, please explain the reasons in the proposed project approach section.

8. What are your primary organizational goals?
Service levels are used as goals that drive daily operations. These can be found at www.regionalsan.com (click
the Customer & Financial Accountability tab) and www.sacsewer.com (click the Serving Our Customers tab).
Longer-term goals can be found in the strategic plans for both Regional San and SASD.
9. Have you conducted behavioral personality assessments on any of your leadership team – executives, managers,
supervisors, etc.?
a. If so, and if we are awarded the contract, could we have access to that information?
Various behavioral personality assessments have been used over time. The main assessments have been the
Myers-Briggs Type Indicator and The Leadership Challenge Leadership Practices Inventory. Everything DiSC has
been used on a limited basis. Making individual results available will be considered if necessitated by an activity
agreed to by us. We would also be required to obtain the permission of our staff in order to release the
information.
10. Can you please confirm that all employees could respond to subsequent employee engagement
survey(s)/assessment(s) in English?
Yes, all employees can respond to surveys/assessments in English
11. Do all employees have access to a computer and a personal e-mail? If no, approximately what percentage of
employees do not have access to a computer/e-mail?
Yes, all employees have access to a computer and have a personal e-mail.
12. Is there a budget range in mind for this initiative? If yes, can you please disclose?
Recognizing that the budget varies with the breadth and depth of the proposal, we do not have a set budget for
this initiative. As stated in the RFP, the scope and budget will be negotiated after the consultant is selected.
Questions Received 09/18/2018
13. What else you can explain about your evaluation criteria? The RFP included some detail about #1 and #2, but
not #3 or #4. Is there anything you can highlight about how you will evaluate Description of Project Approach
and/or Level of Effort?
Refer to Section VIII. Organization and Content of Proposal, page 8, sub-section E. Proposed Project Approach
for further details on the submittal of the Description Project Approach and Level of Effort. This sub-section
provides the factors we will consider in our evaluation.
14. Can you break down the ~850 employees by Department and Office. If possible, please break it down even
further than that, to divisions, functions and/or major teams.
The breakdown of the employee population by Department and Office is (expressed in percentages):
Regional San Operations Department: 47%
SASD Operations Department: 37%
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Internal Services Department: 10%
Policy and Planning Department: 4%
Public Affairs Office: 1%
Finance Office: 1%
Additional information on employee populations will be made available to the consultant selected for the
project.
15. Would all employees have access to a computer to complete the survey (either their own or a shared access
terminal)? If not, please estimate how many employees do not have computer access.
Yes, all employees have access to a computer.
16. What was the specific impetus behind the “Workplace of Choice” goal, e.g., was it based on some type of formal
input from employees or anecdotal information? Can any information (facts or anecdotes) supporting that goal
be shared?
In the last several years, SASD and Regional San have been evolving from a narrower focus on business results to
a broader focus that includes the work environment and culture. The evolution started with more emphasis on
leadership development, expanded with the creation of organizational values, and is now moving in the
direction of being a workplace of choice. We believe this goal will enable us to achieve efficiencies that result in
offering our rate-payers more value in the services we provide, a more engaging and satisfying work
environment for employees, and building a reputation that attracts the best qualified people.
The Workplace of Choice goal was created as part of the strategic planning effort that was completed in 2016.
As part of that effort, input was gathered from approximately 10% of our employees that provided insights into
our strengths and weaknesses. This input was used in determining that the Workplace of Choice goal should be
part of both districts’ strategic plans. Details of the input gathered from employees will be shared with the
consultant selected for the project.
17. Can you please share any information that has been communicated to all staff regarding the Workplace of
Choice goal including its introduction to the organization and any updates on current efforts?
We have not officially introduced the Workplace of Choice goal to all staff. However, all staff have been
informed about the strategic plans where the workplace of choice goal resides.
18. Can you share any criteria for the annual employee recognition programs for SASD and Regional San? Have they
been altered in any way to reflect your recently minted values or the Workplace of Choice goal?
Each department conducts their own employee appreciation events. These can take the form of group lunches
or special events at staff meetings where organizational successes are reviewed as a way of recognizing group
efforts. Individual recognition may be provided at these events. SASD and Regional San host annual lunches for
appreciating employees’ contribution to organizational successes. These types of appreciation events have no
specific criteria.
SASD Operations Department conducts an annual employee recognition ceremony where a series of employee
awards are given. These awards are voted by the employees using the following criteria:
Productivity/efficiency
Attendance/reliability
Great attitude

Ethnical/professional conduct
Support of the vision
Customer service-oriented
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Teamwork

Creative ideas

A narrative description of the contributions the nominated employee has made is also considered. Staff from
other departments can be nominated to receive this award.
The Internal Services Department conducts an annual Service to Success recognition event where employees are
recognized for their accomplishment, behavior, activity, or event that justifies why the nominee should be the
recipient of an award. Nominations are submitted by peers and reviewed by a selection committee.
The Policy and Planning Department recognizes employees monthly by awarding the Values Hot Potato award
based on their use of our organizational values. Employees are nominated by their peers and a single recipient
selected by the department director. Staff from other departments can be nominated to receive this award.
19. What are the objectives/intended outcomes of the other two upcoming projects: Staffing and Support Services
Study, and District Merger Study? What are those timelines?
The principle objective of the Staffing and Support Services is to perform a comprehensive assessment of the
advantages and disadvantages of continued use of County staff and services versus Regional San and SASD
maintaining their own staff. In addition, the study will review alternatives for providing support services (such as
construction inspection, human resources, labor relations, information technology, legal, billing, payroll, etc.)
that are currently being provided by the County.
The principle objective of the District Merger Study is to perform a comprehensive assessment of the
advantages and disadvantages of merging Regional San and SASD into one wastewater agency, as opposed to
maintaining the current structure of two separate wastewater districts. In addition, the current staffing
organizational structure will be reviewed to determine whether a different structure may be more appropriate
to efficiently deliver services under status quo or a combined utility. These studies are planned to kickoff in late
October 2018 and to be completed in July 2019.
Questions Received 9/19/2018
20. Regarding this statement: "Consultants must exclude cost information in all proposal copies (original, hard copy, and
digital)." Please clarify how SacSewer would like to receive the cost proposal. Is this to be sent separately in digital
form only? Both mail (hard copy) and digital? If both, is that in one sealed envelope or how many copies of the cost
proposal are needed?
The cost proposal should be sent in a separate, sealed envelope along with the proposals through the mail. A single
copy of the cost proposal is sufficient.
21. Do you prefer to be called SASD and Regional San or SacSewer.
SASD and Regional San.
22. Is this acceptable: SacSewer signs our mutual NDA (attached) and we submit an exception to section h stating that
our mutual NDA would govern the parties relationship with respect to Proprietary information. Section 3.d of the
NDA would apply in the event of a FOIA request. The information would remain confidential and we would have a
chance to object to the disclosure.
Regional San and SASD do not sign other entities’ non-disclosure agreements since we are subject to the California
Public Records Act. Once a consultant has been selected, limited non-disclosure agreements can be negotiated.
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23. Has the district conducted employee engagement surveys in the past?
No.
24. The RFP asks for the geographic locations of team members. Would a local project manager be preferred?
The project manager does not need to be local.
25. Will all employees be able to take an online survey? For employees in the field, would the District be able to provide
access to laptops and distribute passwords to these so they can take the online survey?
All employees will be able to take an online survey. All employees have access to computers with both intranet and
internet access.
26. Could you describe in more detail expectations for the consultant's role in implementation?
The consultant’s role in implementation will be dependent on the actions and activities we determine appropriate
from the recommendations provided to us. In some instances the consultant may be asked to take full responsibility
for an activity and in other instances support districts’ staff by providing insights and/or recommendations.
27. Is there a budget for this initiative?
Recognizing that the budget varies with the breadth and depth of the proposal, we do not have a set budget for this
initiative. As stated in the RFP, the scope and budget will be negotiated after the consultant is selected.
28. We would like to confirm that you do not currently have a survey process in place?
We do not currently have a survey process in place related to employee engagement. Different survey tools have
been used to solicit staff’s input on matters related to business operations.
29. What challenges are driving SASD/Regional SAN to put a priority on becoming a Workplace of Choice?
Refer to Section II. Background for a listing of challenges.
30. Executive management has agreed to establish a survey program, but has it been approved by finance and
procurement?
All approvals are in place to proceed with this project.
31. Will the decision makers be from Internal Services or also from Public Affairs and Finance departments?
The ultimate decision makers will be the executive management team that comprises the general manager,
directors, and officers from all departments and offices.
32. Do you plan to survey on an annual basis, or are you considering more frequent feedback?
We are open to the best approach to securing feedback that will enable us to build and maintain a workplace of
choice.
33. Has anything happened within the organization recently that would be beneficial for us to know (i.e., merger, high
turnover, change in senior leadership)
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No significant occurrences have happened recently.
34. How many vendors are you expecting to respond to your RFP?
We cannot speculate on how many vendors will respond. We have received questions from five vendors.
35. Do all staff have a company email address or cell phone?
All staff have a company email address. There are a limited number of people who have a company cell phone.
36. Have you hired consultants in the past as it relates to HR or Employee Engagement strategy?
We have hired consultants over the last few years to support various organizational development efforts, which
include developing core values, delivering leadership courses, providing coaching services and team building
workshops. These efforts touch on employee engagement strategies, but we have not hired any consultants
targeted at employee engagement strategies.
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